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Date of Addendum March 19, 2021 

 
NOTICE TO ALL VENDORS 
The Contract Documents for the above-referenced RFP are modified as set forth in this Addendum.   The 
original Contract Documents and any previously issued addenda remain in full force and effect, except as 
modified by this Addendum, which is hereby made part of the Contract Documents.  Vendor shall take this 
Addendum into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal, and shall acknowledge receipt of 
this Addendum in the space provided on the Proposal Form. 
 
BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE 
 

The proposal submittal deadline remains the same and is not changed by this Addendum.  
 
1.0 – QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
The following questions and answers are provided as a matter of information to clarify issues raised about 
the Contract Documents.  To the extent that changes to the Contract Documents are required based on 
the questions received, the Contract Documents have been modified as noted above in the Specifications 
and Drawings sections of this Addendum. 
Item Questions and Answers 

1.1 Question:  We know that the College had a similar solicitation for services in 2018. What agency 
was hired?  
Answer:  3 Seed Marketing 
 

1.2 Question:  What do you like or not like about your current agency and why are you searching 
again? 
Answer:  Our college policies require us to process RFP’s & Bids for items and/or services over 
$20,000. 
 

1.3 Question:  What is your overall budget for the year in regard to marketing and advertising 
production and development (outside of the media spend)? 
Answer:  The college allocates budget dollars to cover printing, marketing, advertising and 
contracted services to cover the annual marketing budget. College budget information is 
available at https://www.lccc.edu/about-lccc/finances. 
 

1.4 Question:  How many agencies have received this RFP? 
Answer:   As of 3/16/21, 30 agencies were emailed the specifications. The college places the 
RFP document on its website. 
 

1.5 Question:  Since we are a local agency and the USPS has been unreliable these days, will you 
be accepting in-person drop-offs of printed RFP? 
Answer:  Yes                                                                                      NOTE: COVID19 precautions 
  

1.6 Question:  We are a federal government certified SDVOSB agency. Does this categorization get 
special consideration? 
Answer:  All vendors who submit a proposal will be reviewed and considered. 
 

1.7 Question:  Would Lehigh Carbon Community College (LCCC) be open to the new website being 
developed on a different platform outside of Kentico 11? 
Answer:  Yes, we are open to different platforms. Kentico is just what our current vendor uses. 
 

1.8 Question:  Are there any platform requirements or systems integration requirements that need to 
be accounted for with this project? 
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Answer:  We are not beholden to a particular platform. Integration of Audioeye which is our web 
accessibility solution, TargetX CRM built on SalesForce, Banner System (ERP) and 
curriculum/catalog software. 
 

1.9 Question:  Can you elaborate more on the requirements of this “Site must have the ability to 
communicate with secondary data sources (e.g., SQL Server, SalesForce, GOOGLE) for access 
to course, program, CRM and other data.”?  What specifically needs to be integrated to 
Salesforce and SQL Server? 
Answer:  Our ERP, Banner would need to be integrated and our CRM, TargetX is built on 
Salesforce. 
 

1.10 Question:  Do you have specific project and/or platform requirements for the various microsites 
listed in the RFP (e.g., Emergency and Alerts, Foundation and Giving, Workforce, etc.) 
Answer:  The main site and microsites all currently reside on our current CMS and we would like 
to keep that configuration for the new site. There is a strong possibility that there will be projects 
for the microsites, but nothing confirmed as of now. 
 

1.11 Question:  Does LCCC have a creative agency of record that establishes the College’s overall 
brand guidelines, tone, etc.? 
Answer:  We are currently under contract with 3Seed Marketing, Design and Interactive as our 
ad agency of record, but brand guidelines have been set within the college. 
 

1.12 Question:  Are there other comprehensive brand materials that exist outside of these materials? 
Answer   https://www.lccc.edu/about-lccc/media-and-communications/logos-style-guide 
This covers all our brand guidelines. 
 

1.13 Question:  Is this proposal to complete corporate level rebranding for LCCC – or are you looking 
to leverage the existing brand elements and upgrade your website and marketing materials to 
extend the existing brand further? 
Answer:  We are not seeking a comprehensive rebrand at this time, but a leveraging of our 
existing presence in the community. We do follow a theme each year, with color palette, catch 
phrase, font, etc. General branding will not change. 
 

1.14 Question:  What do you like and don’t like about your website as it stands right now? 
Answer:  There is nothing we dislike about it, but it is time for an update and to follow best 
practices for a Higher Ed website. We will need to get buy-in on website structure changes from 
our internal constituents – faculty, administrators, etc. 
 

1.15 Question:  What would the creative review and approval process look like based on your current 
organizational structure? (I.e., who would need to review and provide feedback on the creative 
concept, who would need to review the website copy, etc.) 
Answer:  Major design concepts (for the website for example) would need approval from the 
Executive Team (president and vice presidents). The overarching ad campaign would need 
approval/review from the Executive Team. The subsequent deployment of the creative vision 
would be approved by the executive director of College Relations and her team. She would also 
approve any copy that is developed. 
 

1.16 Question:  Does Lehigh Carbon Community College have an existing online course catalog 
system?  If not – would LCCC be interested in additional services for implementing this type of 
system? 
Answer:  We do not, but recognize the need for it campus wide. Some research has been done 
on course catalog platforms, but no decision has been made and no software purchased. 
 

1.17 Question:  Are vendors required to deliver concept samples as part of the proposal submission? 
Or would the creative concepting come after selection based on the proposal due dates? 
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Answer: The idea for a creative concept is to see a bit of your work. We understand it may be a 
“shot in the dark” but would like to see if the general vision your agency has would be a good fit 
for LCCC. More in-depth conception will come after the agency has been selected and the 
contract begins. 
 

1.18 Question:  Is there a budget range that has been discussed or approved for this project? If so, 
can you share insights to help inform the requirements and approach? 
Answer:  Currently, the media placement budget is a bit over $400,000 and we anticipate annual 
costs of agency services to be around $150,000-$225,000, encompassing creative services, 
media buying, digital ad management, SEO/SEM, web hosting, video and radio production, web 
licensing fees, miscellaneous web page development, web design. Funds are also allocated to 
printing, local/high school advertising and miscellaneous contracted services, which are not part 
of this RFP. College budget information is available at https://www.lccc.edu/about-lccc/finances. 
 

1.19 Question:  Do you plan to coordinate the site redesign with a new CMS (moving away from 
Kentico 11)? If yes, do you have a preferred CMS (or even open source vs. proprietary), or are 
you open to CMS recommendations from your agency partner? If yes, have you been part of any 
CMS demos or evaluated any CMS’s? If so, which systems have you examined? 
Answer:  Yes, we anticipate incorporating a new CMS, not Kentico. We would welcome 
recommendations. We have not had any demos or evaluated other options at this time.  
  

1.20 Question:  What in-house development and/or programming capabilities do you have? 
Answer:  In terms of staffing, our department has one web coordinator, with backup from one 
additional staff. The Information Technology department is not involved in the development or 
programming of the LCCC website.  
 

1.21 Question:  What is the current traffic volume for the existing site? Do you have Google Analytics 
in place in the present site? 
Answer: We have Google Analytics on the website. Traffic volume-Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.22 Question:  Will the selected vendor migrate content from the existing site to the new one? If so, 
please provide a ballpark estimate of the number of pages that need to be migrated to the new 
site by the chosen vendor.  
Answer:  Yes, we anticipate that the new vendor would migrate content. Estimated number of 
pages is 600, but definite number-Addendum 2 on 3/24/21. 
 

1.23 Question:  Content development is a critically important component of a website design. Will the 
selected agency be responsible for new content creation and/or optimization of existing content 
or will all content be handled by the Lehigh Carbon Community College team? 
Answer:  Most of the content creation will be handled by the LCCC team, with inspiration from 
the selected vendor who can help set the tone. 
 

1.24 Question:  If you require content development services, approximately how many pages of new 
content will the selected agency be expected to create? 
Answer:  Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.25 Question:  How many different design templates are currently employed on the site? 
Answer:  Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.26 Question:  What, if any, personalized content approaches do you currently employ? 
Answer:  Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.27 Question:  What is the anticipated budget for this comprehensive initiative? Alternatively, what is 
the not-to-exceed amount and/or budget range? If you have figures identified for each of the 
three initiatives (“Creative Services,” “Website,” “Web Redesign and Maintenance”), that would 
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be extremely helpful as well for project scoping. 
Answer:  Currently, the media placement budget is a bit over $400,000 and we anticipate annual 
costs of agency services to be around $150,000-$225,000, encompassing creative services, 
media buying, digital ad management, SEO/SEM, web hosting, video and radio production, web 
licensing fees, miscellaneous web page development, web design. Funds are also allocated to 
printing, local/high school advertising and miscellaneous contracted services, which are not part 
of this RFP. College budget information is available at https://www.lccc.edu/about-lccc/finances. 
 

1.28 Question:  Will local or in-state agencies be given preference? 
Answer:  All vendors who submit a proposal will be reviewed and considered. 
 

1.29 Question:  Do you prefer that a campaign landing page template be built within Kentico 11 or are 
you open to externally hosted CLPs? 
Answer:  We are open to alternatives. 
 

1.30 Question:  Could you please share the budget range for agency services (excluding 
media/production)? 
Answer:  Currently, the media placement budget is a bit over $400,000 and we anticipate annual 
costs of agency services to be around $150,000-$225,000, encompassing creative services, 
media buying, digital ad management, SEO/SEM, web hosting, video and radio production, web 
licensing fees, miscellaneous web page development, web design. Funds are also allocated to 
printing, local/high school advertising and miscellaneous contracted services, which are not part 
of this RFP. College budget information is available at https://www.lccc.edu/about-lccc/finances. 
 

1.31 Question:  When referring to rebranding, does this include a new logo/brand identity for the 
college? 
Answer:  Rebranding of current materials is simply a redesign. There will not be an overall 
rebranding or logo change in this project. 
 

1.32 Question:  Is a Master Agreement needed to be considered for this project, or is the request 
open to all/any vendors? 
Answer:  The RFP is open to all vendors. The selected agency will need to sign the college’s 
Independent Contractor Agreement. 
 

1.33 Question:  Is a State Registration needed to participate? 
Answer:  No 
 

1.34 Question:  Is there an opportunity to bid one or two components of the RFP (such as media 
and/or website only) or is it mandatory to submit for all three to be considered? 
Answer:  Proposals should include all three components. 
 

1.35 Question:  Can you provide your anticipated budget range for the creative services engagement 
and website development respectively? 
Answer:  See 1.30 
 

1.36 Question:  The RFP mentions media costs should not be included, should we provide our media 
planning and buying fees for an estimated budget of $400,000 in media spend, or would planning 
and buying fees be included in the $400,000 and not necessary at this time? 
Answer:  Include your fees to buy or place ads. The $400,000 is separate from these services 
and is designated for the purchase or ads themselves. 
 

1.37 Question:  If selected as one of the top 3-5 finalists, is the development of creative concepts 
mandatory for further consideration? As an agency, we do not complete comp work during a 
selection process as doing so skips important parts of the strategic process. With that said, we 
can provide creative samples of our previous work. 
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Answer:  The idea for a creative concept is to see a bit of your work. This is only for those 
companies selected to make presentations. We understand it may be a “shot in the dark,” but 
would like to see if the general vision your agency has would be a good fit for LCCC. More in-
depth conception will come after the agency has been selected and the contract begins. 
   

1.38 Question:  Regarding the website development:  For your “microsites,” do you have different 
editors/administrators? Does login access to the sites and microsites need to be different? Is it 
the intention to have microsites appear differently than the theme of the main site? 
Answer:  Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.39 Question:  Will you continue using all the third party services such as Omnilert, Banner, Wave, 
IDP, etc.? 
Answer:  Yes, these are specific outsourced services. 
 

1.40 Question:  Can you give us an example of what your content management workflow would be? 
Answer:  Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.41 Question:  Can you clarify what is meant by “communicate with secondary data sources?” Are 
the websites pushing or pulling data from one place to another? If so, what are those sources 
and the purpose and function? 
Answer:  Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.42 Question:  What types of data privacy regulations does the college need to adhere to? FERPA, 
etc.? 
Answer:  FERPA 
 

1.43 Question:  Do you intend to stay with Kentico 11? Would you be comfortable using WordPress? 
Answer:  We have no preconceptions about the platform and would accept recommendations. 
 

1.44 Question:  What do you like/dislike about Kentico? 
Answer:  We are not attached to Kentico and would be open to a new CMS. 
 

1.45 Question:  If we are chosen for this project, are we able to access your Kentico site? 
Answer:   Yes 
 

1.46 Question:  Do you have an internal IT team we would be able to connect directly with? 
Answer:  Yes, the selected agency will be able to work with our IT team. 
 

1.47 Question:  Are your microsites their own brands? Is there a reason they are living as microsites? 
Answer:  Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.48 Question:  Is the “apply now” form or any others going to be a third-party app? Or would we need 
to build? 
Answer:  It goes to our CRM platform, TargetX, which is a Salesforce product. 
 

1.49 Question:  How many stakeholders are involved in this project? 
Answer:  The agency will work with the College Relations team. Approvals for major design will 
be from the Executive Team (president & vice-presidents). Focus groups with key academic 
people will be held for website redesign. 
 

1.50 Question:  Will a content audit be needed or will you use current content? 
Answer:  Using current content 
 

1.51 Question:  Will the sitemap structure be similar or need to be re-done? 
Answer:  Will be similar. We do not anticipate drastic changes. 



Creative Services, Marketing and Web Redesign & Maintenance 
RFP Due Date March 29, 2021 

ADDENDUM # 1 
Page 6  

 
 

3/29/21 
 

 
 

1.52 Question:  How much data do you have on user’s behavior? How do you track and collect this 
data? 
Answer:  Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.53 Question:  What are your expectations with your mobile first design? 
Answer:  Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.54 Question:  Is there any information on the website that we need to export out? i.e., a blog post, 
etc? 
Answer:  Addendum 2 on 3/24/21 
 

1.55 Question:  Is there a desired allocation of budget ($400,000) by audience? 
Answer:  This will be determined once the agency is selected and in coordination with the 
College Relations team.  
 

1.56 Question:  Where are the majority of your students from? (geographic areas, cities, zips) 
Answer:  We serve a three-county area of Lehigh, Schuylkill & Carbon Counties 
 

1.57 Question:  Where are all the different places where the students can apply? 
Answer:  Primary application site is the web. 
 

1.58 Question:  Where do you want the application process to happen? Preference? 
Answer:  Online 
 

1.59 Question:  When they decide to attend your school, what feature, or benefits are important to 
them? 
Answer:  Affordability and accessibility, high quality faculty, strong support systems. 
 

 
 

END OF ADDENDUM 


